UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 6
1445 ROSS AVENUE, SUITE 1200
DALLAS, TX 75202-2733

DEC 12 201
CERTIFIED MAIL - RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED: 7007 2560 0002 7737 4081

Matthew Marra

Senior Director-Environmental
LEnterprise Products Operating LLC
1100 Louisiana Street

Houston, Texas 77002

Re:  Complaint and Consent Agreement and Final Order
Docket Number CAA-06-2012-3302

Dear Mr. Marra:

This is to acknowledge receipt of the signed “Complaint and Consent Agreement and
Final Order” (combo). The Environmental Protection Agency hereby issues this combo. The
penalty payment is due within thirty (30) days after the cffective date.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Leonard Schilling, Assistant
Regional Counsel, at (214) 665-7166. Thank you for your assistance with this matter.

Sincerely,

Compliance Assurance apjd
Enforcement Division

Enclosures

ce: Brian Sinclair
Director, Enforcement Division
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Jason Harris

Manager, Air Section

Houston Regional Office

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

We promote compliznce with I'ederal environmental repolations in parinership with our States and ‘Tribes
Internet Address (URL) o http:/fwww.ept.gov
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The Director of the Compliance Assurance and Enforcement Division of the United
States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 6 (“Complainant™) and Enterprise Products
Operating LLC (“Enterprise” or “Respondent”) in the above referenced proceeding, hereby agree
to resolve this matter through the issuance of this Complaint and Consent Agreement and Final
Order.

I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. This proceeding is for the asscssment of civil penaltics pursuant to Scction 113(d)
of the Clean Air Act, as amended (“CAA™), 42 U.8.C. § 7413(d), the issuance of @ complhiance
order pursuant to Section 113{a)(3)(B) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(2)(3)(B), and for
additional terms of settlement as agreed to by Respondent, This proceeding was instituted by the
issuance of a Complaint and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing incorporated herein, and is
simuHancously concluded by the issuance of this Consent Agreement and Final Order (“"CAFO™)

against Respondent pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b), 22.18(b}{2), 22.18{h)(3), and 22.34.
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2. The Complaint alleges that Enterprise violated regulations promulgated under the
CAA at its marine terminal located at 1200 N. Broadway 1 La Porte, Harris County, Texas.

3. For purposcs of this proceeding, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations
of this Complaint; however, Respendent ncither admits nor denies the specific factual allegations
contained in this Complaint,

4, Respondent consents to the issuance ol this CAFO hereinafler recited and to the
assessment and payment of the stated civil penalty in the amount and by the method set out in
this CAFO and agrees to pertorm monthly monitoring of the valves identified below as
Components 10325, 10341, 10352, and 01326 at the Facility until no leak is detected from the
valves for 2 successive months. In addition, Respondent agrees to perform the Additional Terms
of Settlement set forth in Paragraph 30 and the Appendix to this CAFO.

S. Respondent waives any right to contest the allegations in the CAFO and its right
to appeal the Final Order sel forth herein, and Respondent waives all defenses which have been
raised or could have been raised to the claims sct forth in the CAFO.

0. Compliance with all the terms and conditions of this CAFO shall resolve
Respondent’s Liability for federal civil penalties for the violations alleged in this CAFO.

7. Respondent shall not assert, and may not maintain, any defense or claim based
upon the principles of waiver, res Judicata, collateral estoppel, issue prechusion, or claim-splitting
[or violations not alicged in this Complaint,

8. Nothing in this CAFO shall be construed to prevent or hmit the civil and eriminal
authorities of the United States Environmental Protection Agency, or that of other tederal, state,
or local agencies or departments to obtain penalties or injunctive relief under other federal, state,

or local laws or regulations.
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9. Respondent represents thal it is duly authorized to execute this CAFO and that the
party signing this CAFO on behalf of the Respondent 1s duly authorized to bind the Respondent
to the terms and conditions of this CAFO.

10. Respondent agrees that the provisions of this CAFO shall be binding on its
ofticers, directors, employees, agents, servants, anthorized representatives, successors, and
ass1gns.

II. STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND

11. Section 111(WY(1)(A) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 741 1(b){1}(A), requires the
Administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency to publish a list of
categorics of stationary sources that in lns judgment cause, or contribute significantly to, air
pollution that may reasonably be anticipated to endanger public health or welfare. Section
1TI(BY(1)B) ot the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 741 1{(MY(1)B), requires EPA to publish Federal standards
of performance for new sources within each such category.

12. Pursuant to its authority under Section [ 11 of the CAA, EPA promulgated 40
C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart VV (Standards of Performance for Equipment Leaks of VOC [Volatile
Organic Compounds] in the Synthetic Organic Chemicals Manufacturing Industry).

13. According to 40 C.F.R. § 60.480(a)(1), Subpart VV applies to aflected facilities
1 the synthetic erganic chemicals manufacturing mdustsy.

14, Section 60.480(a)(2) of Subpart VV defines an aftected facility as all equipment,
including valves, within a process unit. See afso 40 C.F.R. § 60.481.

15, Section 60.481 of Subpart VV defines synthetic organic chemicals manufacturing
indusiry as the industry that produces, as intermediates or final products, one or more of the

chemicals listed in 40 C.F.R. § 60.489, including isobutylene.
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16. Section 60.482-7 of Subpart VV scts forth monitoring and repair requirements for
valves in gas/vapor scrvice and Hght liquid service.

17. According to 40 C.I.R. § 60.482-7(c)(2), il a leak is detected, the valve shall be
monitored monthly until a leak is not detected for 2 successive months.

1. FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF AW

{8 Respondent is a limited Hability company doing business in the State of Texas
and is a “person” as that term is defined in Section 302(e) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7602{¢), and
within the meaning of Scction 113(d) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d).

19.  Atall relevant times, Respondent owned and operated the Morgan’s Point
Complex, a marine terminal located at 1200 N, Broadway in La Porte, Harris County, Texas (the
“Facility”).

20.  The Facility includes one or more valves, including those specitically identified as
Components 10325, 10341, 10352, and 01326, associated with the production of isobutylene and
subject to the requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart VV.

1V. VIOLATION

21 In December 2010, Enterprise discovered leaks from Components 10325, 10341,
10352, and 01326 but did not moniter the valves monthly until no leak was detected for two (2)
successive months,

22, By failing to monitor Components 10325, 10341, 10352, and 01326 monthly until
no leak was detected for two (2) successive months, Enterprise violated 40 C.F.R.

8 60.482-7(c)(2).
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V. CIVIL PENALTY, COMPLIANCE ORDER, AND ADDITIONAL
TERMS OF SETTLEMENT

23, For the reasons set forth above, Respondent has agreed fo pay a civil penalty
which has been determined in accordance with Section 113(d) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d),
which authorizes EPA to assess a civil penalty of up to twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000)"
per day for each violation of the CAA. Upon consideration of the entire record herein, including
the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, which are hereby adopted and made a part hereof,
and upon consideration of the size of the business, the cconomic impact of the penalty on the
business, the violator’s full compliance history and good faith efforts to comply, the dutation of
the violation, payment by the violator of penalties previously assessed for the same violation, the
cconomice benetit of noncompliance, the seriousness of the violation, specific facts and equities,
litigation risks, and other factors as justice may require, INCLUDING Respondent’s agreement
to perform the additional terms of settlenment set forth below, it is ORDERED that Respondent be
assesscd a civil penalty tn the amount of thirty thousand five hundred dollars (S30,500).

24, Within thirty (30) days of Respondent’s receipt of this fully exceuted CAFQ,
Respondent shall pay thirty thousand five hundred dollars ($30,500) by cashier’s or certified
check made payable to “Treasurer, United States of America, EPA - Region 6.7 Payment shall
be remitted in one of five (5) ways: regular U.S. Postal Service mail, to include certified mail;

overnight mail; wire transter; Automated Clearinghouse; or On Line Payment. For regular U.S.

" e Civil Peralty Inflation Adjustment Acyof 1990, 28 U.S.CL§ 2461, us amended by 31 US.C§ 3701 provides for increases
in the statutory penally provisions ($25.008) cited i e Clean Alr At Stationary Source Civil Penatly Policy dated Oclober 25,
1991 (CAA Penalty Palicy). It provides for up to 525,000 per day of violution for violations acewrring on or before January 30,
1997, up to $27.500 per day for cach such viclation occarring sller utaary 30, 1997 theough March 135, 2004; up 1o 332,500 per
day for cach such violation oceurring afler March 15, 2004 tbrough Tanuary 2, 2009 and up o $37,500 per day for cach suck
viedation vecurring after January 12, 2004,
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Postal Service mail, U.S. Postal Service certified mail, or 1).8. Postal Service express mail, the
check(s) should be remitted to:

1J.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

PO Box 979077

St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

For overnight mail (non-U.S. Postal Scrvice, ¢.g. Fed Ex), the check(s) should be remitted to;

U.S, Bank

Government Lockbox 979077
1).S. EPA Fines & Penalties
1005 Convention Plaza
SL-MO-C2-Gl.

St. Louis, MO 63101

Contact: Natalie Pcarson
(314) 418-4087

For wire transfer, the payment should be remuitted to:

Federal Reserve Bank of New York
ABA = 021030004

Account = 68010727

SWIFT address = FRNYUS33

33 Liberty Street

New York, NY 10045

Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read
“D 68010727 Environmental Protection Agency”

For Automated Clearinghouse (also known as REX or remittance express):

U.S. Treasury REX / Cashlink ACH Recetver

ABA: 051036706

Account Numbcer: 310006, Environmental Protection Agency
CTX Tormat Transaction Code 22 -- checking

Physical location of LS, Treasury facility:

5700 Rivertech Court

Riverdale, MDD 20737

Contact: Jesse White (301) 887-6548
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For On-line Payment:
WWW . PAY.GOV

Enter sfo 1.1 in search field
Open form and complcte required fields.

PLEASE

NOTE: Docket Number CAA-06-2012-3302 shall be clearly typed on the check to ensure
proper credit. The check shall also be accompanied by a transmittal lctter and
shall reference Respondent’s name and address, the case name, and docket
number of the administrative complaint and CATFO. Respondent’s adherence to
this request will ensure proper credit is given when penalties are received for the
Region. Respondent shall also send a simultaneous notice ot such payment,
including a copy of the money order, or check, and transmittal fetter to the
following;
Ryan Rosser (6EN-AT)
U.S. EPA, Region 6
1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75202-2733
Region 6 Hearing Clerk
UL.S. EPA Region 6
1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75202-2733

25. Respondent agrees not to claim, or attempt to c¢laim, a federal income tax

deduction or eredit covering all or any part of the civil penalty paid to the United States
Treasurer,

26. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717 and 40 C.F.R. § 13.11, unless otherwise prohibited
by law, EPA will assess interest and late payment penalties on outstanding debts owed to the
United States and a charge to cover the costs of processing and handling a delinquent claim.
Interest on the civil penalty assessed in this CAFO will begin to aceruc thirty (30) days after the
effective date of the CAFO and will be recovered by EPA on any amount of the ¢ivil penalty that
is not patd by the respective due date. Interest will be assessed at the rate of the United States

Treasury tax and loan rate i accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 13.11(a). Moreover, the costs of the
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Agency’s administrative handling of overdue debts will be charged and assessed monthly
throughout the pertod the debt is overdue. See 40 CER. § 13.11(0).

27. EPA will also assess a fifteen dollar ($15.00) administrative handling charge for
adminisirative costls on unpaid penalties for the first thirty (30} day period after the payment is
due and an additional fifteen dollars (§15.00) for each subsequent thirty (30) day period that the
penalty remains unpaid. In addition, a penalty charge of up to six percent per year will be
assessed monthly on any portion of the debt which remains delinquent more than ninety (90)
days. See 40 C.F.R. § 13.11(c). Should a penalty charge on the debt be required, it shall accrue
from the first day payment 1s delinquent. See 31 C.F.R. § 901.9(d). Other penalties for faiture to
make a payment may also apply.

28, Pursuant to Scction 113(d)5) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)(5), any person
who tails to pay on a timely basis a civil penalty ordered or assessed under this scetion shall be
reguired 1o pay, in addition to such penalty and interest, the United States enforcerent expenses,
including, but not limited to, attorneys fees and costs incurred by the United States for collection
proceedings, and a quarterly nonpayment penalty for each quarter during which such failure to
pay persists, Such nonpayment penalty shall be 10 percent of the aggregate amount of such
person’s outstanding penaltics and nonpayment penalties acerued as of the beginning of each
quarter.

29, Within twelve (12) months of the effective date of this CAFO, Respondent shall
perform monthly monitoring of Components 10325, 10341, 10352, and 01326 until no leak is
detected for 2 successive months.,

30. Respondent agrees to comply with the Additional Terms of Scttlement described

in the Appendix to this CAFO.
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31. Nothing in this agreement shall be construed as prohibiting, altering, or i any
way limiting the ability of EPA to seek any other remedies or sanctions available by virtue of the
Respondent's violation of this agreement or of the statutes and regulations upon which this
agreement 1s based, or for the Respondent's violation of any applicable provision of law.

32.  This CAFQ shall not relieve the Respondent of its obligation to comply with all
applicable provisions of federal, state or local law, nor shall it be construed to be a ruling on, or
determination of, any issue related to any federal, state or local perimit, nor shall it be construed
to constitute EPA approval of any cquipment or technology installed by the Respondent in
conncction with any additional settlement terms undertaken purseant to this CAFQ. Nothing in
this CAFO shall be construed to prohibit or prevent the federal, state, or local government from
developing, implementing, and enforcing more stringent standards through rulemaking, the
permit process, or as otherwise authorized or required.

33. This document is a “Final Order™ as that term is defined in the CAA Penalty

Policy for the purpose of demonstrating a history of “prior such violations.”

Y
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FINAL ORDER
Pursuant to Section 113(d} of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d), and the Consolidated Rules
of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, 40 C.F.R. Part 22, the
foregoing Consent Agreement is hereby ratified. This Final Order shall not in any case affect the
right of EPA or the United States to pursuc appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or
criminal sanctions for any violations of taw, This Final Order shall resolve only those causes of
action alleged in this CAFO. The successful complction of the Additional Terms of Settlement
set forth in Paragraph 30 and the Appendix to this CAFO arc conditions precedent to the
resolution of the claims set forth in Paragraphs 21 and 22 of this CAFO. Nothing in this Final
Order shall be construed to waive, extinguish, or otherwise affect Respondent’s (or its officers,
agents, servants, employees, sUccessors, or assigns) obligation to comply with all applicable
federal, state, and local statutes and regulations, including the regulations that were the subject of
this action. The Respondent is ordered to comply with the terms of settlement as they relate to
the assessment of civil penalties and the requirement to perform monthly monttoring of
Components 10325, 10341, 10352, and 01326 until no leak is detected for 2 successive months.
In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.31(b), this Final Order shall become etfective upon filing with

the Regional Hearing Clerk.

Dated ]?/!t//!{ QQ/‘ _ h__ -

P Patrick Rankin
Regional Judicial Officer
.S, EPA, Region 6

1§
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APPENDIX — ADDITIONAL TERMS OF SETTLEMENT

Introduction

1. Inorder to minimize or eliminate fugitive enussions of volatile organic compounds (“VOCs™),
henzene, volatile hazardous air pollutants (“VHAPS™) and organic hazardous air pollutants (“HAPs”
from equipment in light fiquid service, in heavy liquid service, and/or 1n gas/vapor service, Respondent
shall undertake the enhancements indentified in this Appendix to its leak detection and repair (“LIDAR™)
program for the Facility. The terms “equipment,
*in gas/vapor service” shall have the respective definitions set forth in the applicable provisions of 40
C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart VV and applicable staie and local LIDAR regulations.

EEN TN

in light liquid service,” “in heavy liquid service,” and

AR Y

2. The requirements of this Appendix shall apply to all equipment at the Facility that is regulated
under 40 C.IF R, Part 60, Subpart V'V or other applicable federal, state, or local LDAR regulations
(“Covered Equipment™), except that the requirements of paragraphs 7 and 8 also shall apply to equipment
at the I‘acility that is not regulated under 40 C.I'.IR. Part 60, Subpart VV or other applicable federal, state,
or local LDAR regulations {(Noi-Covered Equipment™). The requirements of this Appendix are in
addition to, not in lieu of, the requirements of any other LIDAR regulations that may be applicable to
equipment at the Facility. [fthere is a conflict between a federal, state, or local LIDAR regulation and this
Appendix, Huterprise shall follow the more stringent ol the requirements.

Written Facility-Wide LDAR Program

3. Within three (3) months af the effcetive date of this CAFQ, Respondent shall develop a written
Facility-wide program to ensure compliance with all federal, state, and local LIDAR regulations applicable
to equipment at the Facility (the “LDAR Program™). The TDAR Progran shall include, at a minimuny:

a. anidentification system for all Covered Equipment;

b, procedures for identifying leaking Covered Liquipment;

¢. procedures for monitoring, repairing, and keeping track of leaking Covered Equipment;

d. atracking program {¢.g., Management of Change) that ensures that new Covered
Fauipent added to the Facility is integrated into the LIXAR Program and that Covered

Fyuipment taken aut of service is removed from the LIDAR program;

¢. procedures for quality assurance/quality control (“QA/QC™) reviews of all data generated

by LDAR monitoring technicians; and

. adescription of the Facility’s LDAR monitoring organization, including the roles and
responsibifitics of all employce and costractor personnel assigned to LDAR functions at
the Facility, how the munber of personncel dedicaled to the LIDAR funetions is sufticient
to satisfy LDAR requirements, and a designation of the person or position responsible for

A-1
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LDAR management and who has the authority to implement LDAR improvements at the
Facility.

L.eak Definitions

4. Within one (1) month of the effective date of this CAFQ, and lor twelve (12) months afler the
effective date of this CAFO, Respondent shall use the fellowing internal leak defimtiens tor Covered
Equipment at the Facility, unless a lower leak defimition 1s established by permit, or federal, state, or local
faws or regulations:

a.  Valves- 250 ppmn
b, Pumps — 500 ppm

5. For regulatory reporling purposes (i.e., reports o federal, state, or local agencies not required by
this CAF(}) Respondent may continue to report leaks using the applicable regulatory leak definition or the
lower, internal leak delinitions specified in this Appendix. Respondent shall indentily in the applicable

report which delinition is being used,
I.DAR Training

6. Within six {6) months of the effective date of this CAFO, Respondent shall develop a training
protocol and implement a training program at the Facility that includes the following {eaturcs:

a. for personnel newly-assigned to LDAR responsibilities, Respondent shall require LDAR
raining prior to cach employee beginning work;

b. forall personnel assigned LDAR responsibilities, Respondent shall require completion of
annual LDAR training;

¢. forall other Facility operations and maintenance personnel (including contract personnel}
who have dutics relevant to LDAR, Respondent shall provide and require completion of
an initial training program that includes mstruction on aspects of LIDAR that are relevant
to the person’s duties,
FLIR Camera

7. Within three (3) months of the eftective date of this CAFQ, Respondent shall purchase a forward
looking infrared (“ILIR™) camera. Beginning three (3} months afler the effective date of the CAIFQ and
once every two (2) months thereafter for twelve {12} months, Respondent shall conduct moniloring of
equipment al the Facility using the FLIR camera according to the following terms:

a4 Leaks bom Covered Equipment — For any leaks detected from Covered Equipment,

Respondent shall repair or place such equipment on delay of repair status in accordance
with applicable LIDAR regulations

A-2
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b, Leaks from Non-Covered Equipment — For any leaks detected from Non-Covered
Equipment, Respondent shall either 1) make a first attempt to repair within filicen (15)
calendar days of identifying the leak and a second attempt 1o repair, if necessary, within
forty-five (45) calendar days of identifying the leak or 2) if necessary, place the
equipment on delay of repair status vntil the next turnaround at the Facility.

¢. If Respondent identifies a leak from Covered or Non-Covered Equipment that is an
unauthorized release under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation,
and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 9601-9675, the Emergency Planning and Community
Right-To-Know Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 11001-11050, or other federal, state, or lacal air and
release reporting laws, Respondent shall comply with all applicable requirements under
the aforementioned laws,

8. Within twelve (12) months of the effective date of this CATO, Respondent shall submit to EPA a
report describing, among other things, all of the leaks that were identified using the FLIR camera and any
corrective actions taken to repair the leaks (the “I'LIR Camera Report™).

LDAR Audit

9. Within six (6) months of the effective date of this CAFQ, Respondent shall conducet a third-party
audit of the IFacility to ensure compliance with all applicable LDAR regulations (the “LDAR Audit”).
The LDAR Audit shall include comparative monitoring of vaives and pumps, records review to ensure
monitoring and repairs for valves and pumips were completed as required, tagging review, data
management review, and observation of the LDAR {echnicians' calibration and monitoring lechniques.
Ifor purposes of this requirement, “third party” may include a qualified contractor, consultant. industry
group or trade association, I Respondent has used a third party to underlake routine LDAIR monitoring
prior ta the effective date of the CAFO, Respondent shall not use the same third party to undertake the
LIIAR Audit required by this Appendix.

10. If the results of the LIDAR Audit identify non-compliance with any applicable LDAR
requirements, Respondent shall implement, as soon as practicable, all appropriate steps necessary (o
correct the non-compliance, and to prevent, to the exient practicable, a recurrence of the cause(s) of the
non-compliance.

11, Within twelve {12) months of the effective date of this CAFQ, Respondent shall submit to EPA a
report that describes, amaong other things, the resulis of the LDAR Audit, all identified areas of non-
compliance, and actions taken (o correct identificd arcas of non-compliance (the “Audit Report™). In the
Audit Report, Respondent shall certify that 1) it has completed all corrective actions or is in (he process of
completing all corrective actions pursuant to a Corrective Action Plan, 2) the Facility 1s 1n compliance
with all applicable LDAR regulations except for the indentified arcas of non-compliance in the Audit
Report, and 3} all Covered Equipment has been identified and included in the LDAR Program.
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